
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Community Safety, 
Environment and Residents 

Services Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 2 March 2016 
7.00 pm 

Small Hall - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Larry Culhane (Chair) 
Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor Sharon Holder 
 

Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ainsley Gilbert 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

23 February 2016 
 

 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Agenda 
 

2 March 2016 
 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  1 - 8 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 18th January 2016.  

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 To invite questions from members of the public present.  
 
Members of the public with more complex issues are invited to submit 
their questions in advance in order to allow a more substantive answer 
to be given. Questions can be sent to the contact officer shown on the 
front page of the agenda.  

 

5.   SERVICES FOR VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS  9 - 19 

6.   SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE SYSTEMS UPDATE  20 - 36 

7.   HAMMERSMITH GYRATORY CONSULTATION  37 - 43 

8.   CYCLE QUIETWAY BETWEEN KENSINGTON AND EAST ACTON 
CONSULTATION  

44 - 51 

9.   WORK PROGRAMMING   

 The Committee is asked to suggest any items it wishes to consider at 
future meetings. 

 

10.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 The following dates are scheduled:  
- 12th April 2016 
- 28th June 2016 
- 21st September 2016 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Community Safety, 
Environment and 

Residents Services 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Monday 18 January 2016 
 

 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Larry Culhane (Chair), Iain Cassidy, 
Sharon Holder, Charlie Dewhirst and Steve Hamilton 
 
Other Councillors: Sue Fennimore, Wesley Harcourt, Max Schmid and 
Ben Coleman 
 
Officers: Sue Harris, Hitesh Jolapara, Mark Jones, Andrew Lord, Kathy May and 
David Page 
 
29. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2015 be approved as a 
correct record, subject to the amendment of the title of Minute 24 from 
‘Boroughwide 20MPH Speed Limit – Consultation Results’ to ‘20 MPH – 
Consultation Results’. 
 

30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence from Councillors. George Warren, 
Flood Risk Manager, had been taken ill and so item 5, Update on Sustainable 
Drainage Solutions, had been deferred until the PAC meeting on 2nd March 
2016. 
 

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

32. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
The Chair invited members of the public present to make any comments in 
relation to issues on the agenda as part of that item. 
 

33. UPDATE ON SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE SCHEMES  
 
This item was deferred to the meeting on 2nd March 2016 owing to officer 
illness. 
 

34. WORMHOLT PARK LANDSCAPE REFURBISHMENT PROJECT  
 
Dave Page, Director for Safer Neighbourhoods, explained that the park was 
in the middle of a 22 week improvement project. Works had begun at the 
eastern end of the park, near to the Bloom development. The remains of the 
former Janet Adegoke Centre and the bowling green had been removed, 
although this had been more difficult than anticipated. The planting had been 
thinned, and the beds prepared for new planting. The next phase would be 
taking place in the south west corner of the park, with the Multi Use Games 
Area being installed, as well as footpath works. The play equipment would be 
delivered in the last week of January, and the project remained on budget. 
There were issues with the concrete slab above the Bloom underground car 
park, which extended into the park by 1.2 metres and made planting above it 
at ground level impossible. It was proposed to extend the existing paved area 
and install a soak away drainage system, subject to an acceptable estimate 
being received. Sport England had declined funding for replacement tennis 
courts, and so, at this time, these would not be built, although officers 
continued to seek other funding for them.   
 
The project had been consulted on at length with residents and the Friends of 
Wormholt Park, a dragon had been designed by pupils at Wormholt School 
and would be sculpted by a local artist, whilst a wheelchair swing had been 
match funded by residents, and would therefore be installed as part of the 
works. The committee expressed its thanks to Hayley Wedgebury for having 
organised the campaign for a wheelchair swing, and to the London Housing 
Partnership for contributing to the cost of the sculpture. The park had 
remained open throughout the works but it was likely that the park would be 
re-launched as part of the W12 Festival, once new grass had become 
established.  
 
The Chair asked  whether the Bloom development would pay for additional 
costs resulting from the car park slab. Dave Page explained that officers were 
looking into liability, however, he was also keen to ensure that the works were 
done as part of the wider scheme and so this had not been officers’ first 
priority.  
 
The Chair asked whether there had been any problems with misuse of the 
wheelchair swing in Ravenscourt Park, and whether officers expected such 
issues in Wormholt Park. Dave Page said that there had been no issues with 
the existing swing in Ravenscourt Park, and that it had been both well used 
and respected; he did not see why there would be any problems related to the 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

swing at Wormholt Park. Members agreed that a letter be sent to Ms 
Wedgebury to thank her for her efforts in getting the swing built.  
 

35. FUTURE WASTE AND STREET CLEANSING SERVICES – INVOLVING 
THE CITIZEN – CONSULTATION OUTCOMES  
 
Kathy May, Head of Waste and Street Enforcement, explained that the 
consultation on Waste and Street Cleaning had been proposed to the meeting 
of the PAC on 21 September 2015. The consultation had closed early due to 
misleading publicity but answers received at that point had been collated, 
together with suggestions on how the service could be improved. An action 
plan had been developed from these suggestions and officers were working 
to implement this plan, whilst the responses to the consultation were included 
in the agenda pack for Members’ consideration. Kathy May invited questions 
and comments.   
 
A resident asked what the Council was doing to reduce the amount of fly-
tipping. Kathy May explained that there were some changes in the action plan 
aimed at reducing fly-tipping, but noted that other local authorities across 
London were also facing an increase in dumped rubbish. The resident 
suggested that the Council could use its resources more effectively and 
suggested: 

- Reporting of fly-tips by the crews of refuse lorries and by street 
sweepers. 

- Fly-tip collection vans following refuse lorries. 
- PCSOs reporting fly-tips. 
- Routine inspections by Councillors and residents. 
- The Council providing larger bins for storing waste. 
- Better communication between Council departments such as Public 

Health, Environment and Housing. 
- A focus on clearing waste rather than investigating where it had come 

from.    
- Increased enforcement against fly-posters. 

 
Kathy May explained that crews were already supposed to report dumped 
waste, although she didn’t have figures at the meeting on how many reports 
were made. She noted that there were not sufficient vans to follow all of the 
refuse lorries, and that PCSOs had a number of other priorities. Councillors 
explained that in some areas the larger style bins, with a flip over lid, 
appeared to work well and that encouragement should be offered to increase 
their use in appropriate areas. Sue Harris apologised for issues around 
communication between departments, which she understood were now 
resolved. Kathy May noted that clearing waste without investigating it would 
mean that those dumping it were more likely to get away with it, and a ‘clear 
all’ policy would likely cost a significant amount. Councillor Harcourt asked 
that fly-posting be reported in order that it could be investigated, but noted 
that some advertisements, such as estate agents boards, were harder to 
control because of legal issues. He also asked that reporting options for 
frontline staff be looked into. 
 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

A resident said that he felt that waste dumped at hotspots ought to be 
investigated, but that otherwise investigation was a poor use of resources. 
Another resident said that there had been no successful prosecutions in his 
area for fly-tipping and felt that investigations needed to lead to prosecutions 
to be worthwhile. Kathy May explained that lots of investigation took place, 
but that it was difficult to gather sufficient evidence to prosecute. The Chair 
asked how many officers worked on enforcement, and how many collected 
the dumped waste. Kathy May explained that there were 8 enforcement 
officers, who spent approximately 75% of their time investigating dumped 
rubbish. She did not know how many contractor staff collected fly-tipped 
waste, but agreed to provide this figure to the Chair. Councillor Harcourt 
explained that intensive work had been taking place at Lakeside Road which 
had been a hotspot for dumping. CCTV had been installed, together with 
signs warning those tempted to fly-tip of the number of successful 
prosecutions on the road.  
 
Councillor Coleman asked how fly-tip crews decided what to collect. Kathy 
May explained that crews were sent to collect a particular item or fly-tip, but 
that they then had discretion to collect other items; there was however a limit 
to the capacity of their van. Kathy May also explained that some items which 
were under investigation by enforcement officers could not be collected until 
officers had gathered evidence.  
 
Councillor Fennimore explained that she had suggested the stickers from 
residents referred to in the action plan, and asked how this scheme would be 
publicised. Kathy May explained that they were being trialled in Lakeside 
Road, and if successful they would then be extended to other areas, probably 
based on demand. Councillor Fennimore asked that they be rolled out to 
several more streets now. 
 
A resident asked how much progress had been made on Houses of Multiple 
Occupancy (HMOs) being charged a levy for waste collection. Kathy May 
explained that the idea was being pursued, but that it would take some time. 
Sue Harris explained that officers from authorities across London were 
looking into the issue and a report was due in six months’ time.  
 
A resident highlighted the issue of abandoned bicycles not being collected. 
He said that there were six bikes at the front of Hammersmith Town Hall 
which had been there for well over a year, despite his reporting them as 
abandoned. Sue Harris apologised that these had not been dealt with. The 
Chair suggested that abandoned bicycles could be identified as part of the 
audit of cycle racks being carried out by the Borough’s cycling officer, Richard 
Duffill.  
 
A resident asked how good the Council’s reporting systems were, as he had 
found that not all reports were dealt with appropriately. Kathy May explained 
that the ‘Report It’ app had been audited recently and the flow of reports 
through the system had been good. Councillor Harcourt said that he regularly 
reported issues using the app and the website which were then resolved by 
officers. 
 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillor Dewhirst noted that the Council had shifted its focus from littering 
to fly-tipping and asked whether this was effective. Councillor Harcourt 
explained that he had decided to concentrate on rubbish dumping as the 
amount of littering had reduced, whilst rubbish dumping had become a 
greater problem.  
 
The Chair asked whether a leaflet explaining waste arrangements to 
residents of Houses of Multiple Occupancy had been produced. Kathy May 
explained that these leaflets would be distributed in areas with a high density 
of HMOs by the end of the month. New leaflets to be sent with Council tax 
bills would also be produced, with one specifically for new residents and one 
for existing residents. The Council Tax bills would not, however, include 
details of the collection day as this would be complex and the I.T. systems 
were not capable of identifying this information. The Council planned to install 
better signage in streets to tell residents of their collection days. 
 
A resident asked where information on what could be recycled was available. 
Kathy May explained that bags and signs had to be kept simple, but said that 
there was more information on the website. The resident felt that more 
information could be on the website. 
 
A resident asked what was done about waste dumped by businesses. Sue 
Harris explained that businesses were being written to, reminding them of 
their responsibilities. Night time enforcement officers were being recruited and 
would be taking action against businesses which were dumping waste. 
Councillors and residents could report waste dumped by businesses, and it 
was likely that any waste outside businesses not in a marked bag would be 
dumped. The Chair asked whether, when writing to businesses about their 
waste arrangements, officers informed them that the Council offered a waste 
collection service. Kathy May said that the Council did inform businesses that 
it offered the service, but referred to the right of businesses to go with other 
licenced waste carriers as this is what is stated in legislation.   
 
A resident asked whether issuing Fixed Penalty Notices for littering was self-
funding. Sue Harris explained that the current model was not self-funding, 
however, officers were exploring alternative options which may be. The main 
difficulty was that collecting unpaid fines was not self-funding owing to high 
legal costs and low income. 
 
Councillor Hamilton asked what dates the consultation had run. Sue Harris 
explained that the consultation had finished slightly early owing to misleading 
publicity being distributed by some local groups, which was likely to influence 
the results of the survey. Councillor Harcourt agreed to send the dates the 
consultation had run to Councillor Hamilton.  
 
The Chair thanked residents for contributing to a lively and interesting debate. 
 

36. 2016 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 
Hitesh Jolapara introduced the Corporate Budget. He explained that the 
squeeze on public sector finances continued in the Government’s attempt to 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

reduce the deficit. Local Government funding had reduced significantly, by 
about 20% since 2010, as other areas such as Policing, the NHS and 
Education were protected from funding cuts. He explained that the 
Government now allowed Councils to introduce a 2% Social Care Precept, 
however, the amount this might raise in Hammersmith and Fulham was low 
as existing levels of Council Tax were low. Proposals for the devolution of 
Non Domestic Rates was expected, but new responsibilities were expected to 
come with this extra money; no detail was yet available from the Government. 
Mr Jolapara explained that there were two large items of corporate growth, 
resulting from reform of Local Government Pensions to remove the National 
Insurance rebate, and from increased costs in Children’s Services owing to 
new legislation and reduced funding. The administration was proposing that 
Council Tax be frozen, and that the Social Care Precept not be applied in 
Hammersmith and Fulham. Fees and charges for Adult Social Care, 
Children’s Services, Adult Learning and Skills, Libraries and Housing would 
be frozen. Parking Charges would also be frozen, whilst some fees in 
Environmental Services would rise by inflation (1.1%). Commercial fees and 
charges would be reviewed on a case by case basis, to ensure that services 
were both maximising income and remaining competitive. The budget would 
not draw upon general fund reserves, although 20% of the £90 million 
earmarked reserves were committed for 2016/17. Mr Jolapara explained that 
looking forward the Council would face an increasing budget gap, which if the 
Council did nothing, would rise to £55.8 million in 2019/20. 
 
Mark Jones introduced the Environmental Services Budget. He explained that 
Environmental Services brought in a significant amount of income and that 
this was used to provide the wide range of universal services it delivered. 
There were some large contracts in the service, covering waste, street 
cleaning, facilities management, grounds maintenance and enhanced 
policing. The service had tried to protect front-line services through increased 
commercialisation and further efficiencies. Part of the variance in parking 
income had also been included in the 2016/17 budget which had helped to 
reduce the level of savings needed. There were a few small items of growth 
relating to: anticipated licensing fee increases not taking place; the delayed 
implementation of the Wi-Fi concession leading to income being delayed, 
and; additional spending on improving access to sports facilities for residents. 
There was likely to be budget growth in 2017/18 of about £500,000 owing to 
increasing waste disposal costs.  
 
Mark Jones highlighted the key risks to the service budget, which were a fall 
in parking revenue, additional facilities management costs and a failure to 
meet income targets, especially in Adult Learning and Skills and Commercial 
Services. Fees and charges would rise by a maximum of 1.1%, the rate of 
inflation, with parking and a range of other charges frozen. The Bulky Waste 
Collection charge would drop by a further 2.2% to encourage residents to use 
it, whilst some registrars charges were being cut to make them more 
competitive.  
 
Councillor Hamilton referred to paragraph 3.4 of the report and asked why the 
business rates tax base would not be confirmed until February. Andrew Lord 
explained that this was because of a number of pending appeals, and 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

because the impact of an expanded Westfield shopping centre had not yet 
been modelled.  
 
Councillor Hamilton asked why the budget was not presented using the zero 
based methodology. Councillor Schmid explained that the Council was 
adopting a zero based approach to find savings, but that the budget would 
continue to be presented in the usual way.  
 
Councillor Hamilton asked why the Wi-Fi project had been delayed. Mark 
Jones explained that the concession had been given to a private company 
which had been slow to implement its service. The service had now launched 
in town centres.  
 
Councillor Hamilton asked whether it was prudent to include the positive 
parking variance in the 2016/17 budget. Mark Jones explained that less than 
half of the existing variance had been included in the budget for 2016/17. 
Councillor Hamilton sought assurances that this change would not motivate 
officers to fine residents more readily than they would otherwise have done, 
especially for moving vehicle offences. The Chair explained that officers were 
not set targets around how many residents to fine, whilst Councillor Schmid 
noted that the proposals allowed for more than half of the existing variance to 
not be collected without impacting on the budget. Councillor Harcourt 
explained that no new cameras had been introduced, and that the 
administration were trying to deal with a number of issues with signage that 
the previous administration had introduced. Changes were being delayed by 
the Information Commissioner’s Office and the new signage guidance from 
the Department for Transport. 
 
The Chair asked what approach other councils had taken to setting their 
Council Tax. Mark Jones said that there were other London Boroughs which 
were seeking to increase Council Tax.  
 
Councillor Dewhirst referred to paragraph 7.7 of the report and asked how 
spending money on installing new LED lighting would reduce costs. Mark 
Jones explained that whilst capital would be invested the Council would 
benefit from lower electricity charges as LEDs were more efficient than 
existing luminaries whilst repair costs would also fall due to the equipment 
being newer and more reliable. 
 
Councillor Dewhirst asked whether there would be any changes to the 
opening times or maintenance of parks. Councillor Schmid confirmed that no 
savings which would impact on front line services were proposed in this area.  
 
A resident asked whether the roll out of pay by phone was a good opportunity 
to raise parking charges. Councillor Schmid explained that increasing parking 
charges was likely to have an impact on businesses and so was not 
supported by the administration. Increasing charges also pushed people to 
look at alternative parking options which might lead to reduced revenue.  
 
Councillor Hamilton asked whether the budget proposal for increased income 
generation through offering new Adult Learning and Skills classes, which had 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

been classified as being part of the Housing Options, Skills and Economic 
Development Service was the same as the risk identified in paragraph 4.11 of 
the report. Mark Jones confirmed that this was and apologised if the report 
was unclear on this point.  
 
Councillor Hamilton asked whether the proposed sponsorship of assets target 
of £10,000 was unambitious. Councillor Schmid felt that it was realistic, as 
this was a new scheme; it would be imprudent to include a larger amount 
without evidence of the scheme’s ability to raise it.  
 
Councillor Hamilton queried how the £42,000 extra income from filming, hall 
lettings and events would be raised and where additional market stalls would 
be accommodated . Mark Jones explained that better marketing was 
expected to increase filming, hall lettings and events income significantly 
whilst additional markets at North End Road, and changes to the operation of 
the market at Lyric Square were also expected to raise additional income. 
Councillor Hamilton asked whether the increase in the hall fee supplements 
were accurate, as if the hall fees were increasing, 15% of the fee would also 
be higher. Councillor Schmid noted that as there was no proposed increase in 
the supplement percentage this fee did not need to be listed in the 
exceptional fees and charges, felling that its inclusion made the document 
less clear. 
 
Councillor Hamilton queried the inclusion of a growth item on Waste Disposal 
of £0 and the interchangeable use of the words competitive and reasonable. 
Mark Jones explained that the growth item of £0 had been included to 
highlight that for the first year in a very long time there was no growth for 
Waste Disposal. He explained that the fees and charges justifications, where 
the inconsistent wording appeared, were written by service managers and so 
the different wording was simply the result of different choices being made by 
them rather than anything more fundamental.  
 
Councillor Hamilton said that he had not received a notification to say that the 
delayed budget papers had been published. The Clerk agreed to look into 
this, whilst Councillor Schmid apologised that the papers were not available 
for the original agenda despatch owing to the late receipt of information from 
the Government.   
 

37. WORK PROGRAMMING  
 
The proposed work programme was noted. 
 

38. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
Members noted that the next meeting was scheduled for 2nd March 2016. 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 9.05 pm 

Chairman   

Contact officer: Ainsley Gilbert, Committee Co-ordinator 
 : 020 8753 2088 / E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 

Page 8



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 

RESIDENTS’ SERVICES POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY 
COMMITTEE) 

 
2nd March 2016 

 

 

 

Services for Violence Against Women and Girls 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Social Inclusion, Cllr Sue Fennimore 
 

Open Report  
 

Classification - For Information/For Policy & Accountability  
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: David Page: Director for Safer Neighbourhoods 
 

Report Author: Claire Rai, Head of Community Safety 
 

Contact Details: 
Claire.Rai@lbhf.gov.uk 
020 8753 3154 
 

 
 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1. Tackling Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) is a priority for Hammersmith & 
Fulham. The responsibility for tackling VAWG spans across most departments in the 
Council. In July 2015 Hammersmith & Fulham Council partnered the Royal Borough of 
Kensington and Chelsea, and Westminster City Council, with financial support from 
MOPAC to commission a joint VAWG Service. The services includes an Integrated 
Support Service and a Coordination Service. Both services have progressed well since 
the start of the contract and are meeting agreed targets and delivering an improved 
response to victims of VAWG.  
 

1.2. In addition to the Shared VAWG Service, Hammersmith & Fulham Council has 
commissioned the Impact Project since 13/14 with funding from the Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime (MOPAC) and Sherpherd’s Bush Housing Group. The project 
improves the criminal justice response to domestic abuse.  

 
1.3. Hammersmith & Fulham Council are also involved in a number of Shared Services 

VAWG pilots including a; Perpetrators Pilot, Harmful Practices Pilot and the H&F Social 
Care Pilot. The Council also benefits from the Pan London Domestic Violence Service.  

 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



2. BACKGROUND 

Domestic Abuse and Violence Against Women and Girls is high on the political and social 
agenda and continuous improvement in the response to this crime is essential. 
Hammersmith and Fulham has a long-standing history of a robust response to domestic 
abuse. In 2014 the service underwent a move from a focus on domestic abuse to responding 
to violence against women and girls, encompassing a wider range of issues to tackle the ten 
strands of VAWG1. 
 
Hammersmith and Fulham Council, in partnership with the Royal Borough of Kensington and 
Chelsea and Westminster City Council were awarded a sum of money (see table in 3.3)  by 
MOPAC to commission a shared Violence Against Women and Girls Service. The three 
boroughs commissioned a shared VAWG Integrated Support Service and Coordination 
Service for the Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference MARAC and the two Specialist 
Domestic Violence Courts (SDVCs).  
 
The partnership worked in collaboration to develop a VAWG Strategy and a streamlined 
governance structure consisting of the Shared Services Strategic Board and six operational 
groups; Children and Health, Housing, Modern Slavery and Exploitation, Risk and Review 
Group, Specilalist Services and Harmful Practices. The three boroughs offer a significant 
specialist, co-ordinated community response (CCR) to VAWG in partnership with a range of 
specialist agencies.  
 
In addition to the shared service that available to residents Hammersmith & Fulham also 
have the Impact Project which has been running since 2013.  
 
 

3. VAWG SERVICES 

3.1. VAWG INTEGRATED SUPPORT SERVICE 

3.1.1. Project Summary  

The Angelou Partnership consists of nine organisations  and brings together the specialisms 
from across the partnership to deliver a streamlined and holistic approach to tackling issues 
of violence and abuse that disproportionally affect women and girls. The nine organisations 
have different specialisms and areas of work; 
 

 ADVANCE: Lead organisation for the partnership. Specialists working with women 
who have experienced domestic abuse 

 African Women’s Care: Female Genital Mutilation Specialists. 
 Women and Girls Network: Engaging and educating younger women 
 Woman’s Trust: Therapeutic support for women ready to explore & recover from their 

experiences 
 Solace Women’s Aid: Holistic & empowering, working alongside survivors to achieve 

independent lives free from abuse 
 Al Hasaniya: Specialists in domestic abuse within Arabic communities 
 Hestia: Specialist family work, refuges, and group work.  
 Standing Together Against Domestic Violence: An umbrella organisation which 

supports access to services and awareness raising.  

                                            
1
 Domestic Violence/Abuse, Female Genital Mutilation, Forced Marriage, Honour Based Violence, 

Faith Based Abuse, Prostitution and Trafficking, Stalking, Harassment, Sexual Violence and Rape, 
Sexual Exploitation and Child Sexual Exploitation.  

Page 10

http://advancecharity.org.uk/
https://brent.gov.uk/your-community/community-directory/african-womens-care/
http://www.wgn.org.uk/
http://www.womanstrust.org.uk/
http://solacewomensaid.org/
http://al-hasaniya.org.uk/
http://www.hestia.org/
http://www.standingtogether.org.uk/


 Galop: Working with young girls who are LBT who have experienced domestic and 
sexual violence and abuse.  

 
The VAWG ISS provision enables a true coordinated community response to violence 
against women and girls, putting survivors at the centre of provision, holding perpetrators to 
account and safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. The Angelou Partnership provides 
specific services for BME women and those from the LBT community.   
 
This service expanded the Council’s previous domestic abuse provision to deliver a 
coordinated specialist support service to victims of VAWG. The core service includes a 
range of services to support adults and young people, children and families who are victims 
or affected by gender based violence including but not limited to: 
 

 Women experiencing domestic abuse and sexual violence and assault; 

 Women experiencing stalking and harassment; 

 Women who have been subjected to or at risk of harmful practices including 

female genital mutilation (FGM), forced marriage (FM), and honour based 

violence (HBV); 

 Young women and girls aged 13-21 who are experiencing or are at risk of a 

range of issues including domestic abuse, sexual exploitation, gang related 

abuse and harmful practices; 

 Women with children aged 0-5 and also those with older children; 

 Women experiencing intersectional violence (multiple forms of VAWG). 

 

3.1.2. Outcomes and Performance 

The Angelou Partnership is monitored on a monthly basis. Each organisation within the 
partnership has individual targets but the partnership as a whole is measured by the key 
outcomes included in the table below.  

 Outcome Baseline/ 
Target 

Positive 
Response 

1 Women report increased safety and feelings of safety as 
measured by exit surveys 

65% 92% 

2 Women report a reduction in abuse due to support and 
advice received from service as measured by closing 
assessments 

67% 90% 

3 Women are at reduced risk at case closure following the 
support of the service as measured by professional 
judgement, risk and needs assessment, and closing 
statements 

62% 89% 

4 Women and girls report their quality of life has improved 
as measured by exit surveys.  

55% 83% 

5 Women and girls report improved confidence in 
reporting abuse and/or where to access help and 
support as measured by exit measured by exit 
interviews and evaluations.  

72% 93% 

Page 11

http://www.galop.org.uk/


6 Number of women who have experienced abuse 
participating in education, training or employment 
initiatives and/or other personal development 
opportunities as measured by closing assessments and 
support plans.  

(no baseline 
– new 
service) 

35% 

7 Number of women and young people who report a 
reduction in social isolation and increased access to 
social networks. 

(no baseline 
– new 
service) 

74% 

8 Young people report increased awareness of various 
forms of VAWG and where to access help and support 
as measured by exit interviews and evaluations 

(no baseline 
– new 
service) 

84% 

9 Young people report improved confidence in reporting 
abuse and where to access help and support as 
measured by exit interviews and evaluations 

(no baseline 
– new 
service) 

100% 

10 Improved sexual health awareness as measured by exit 
interviews and evaluations.  

(no baseline 
-new 
service) 

38% 

11 Those engaged in awareness raising and prevention 
programmes have a greater awareness of VAWG 
reduced tolerance for VAWG and increased awareness 
of avenues for support as measures by exit itnerviews 
and evaluations. 

(no baseline 
– new 
service) 

64% 

 

As evidenced above Angelou has met and exceeded all of the baseline targets agreed, this 
quarter, it has also exceeded or met the outcomes achieved by ADVANCE in 2014/15. For 
the first full quarter of delivery (Q2) there were 974 referrals. This represents a 30% increase 
from the previous year, and this trend continued into quarter 3. Engagement with the service 
is strong with 70% new referrals being contacted and 92% of those contacted engaging with 
the service on an on-going basis.  

 

3.2. VAWG COORDINATION SERVICE 

3.2.1. Project Summary  

The VAWG Coordination Service is delivered by Standing Together Against Domestic 
Violence (STADV). The Service includes the coordination of three separate Multi-Agency 
Risk Assessmment Conferences (MARAC). The role of the MARAC is to facilitate, monitor, 
and evaluate effective information sharing between statutory and voluntary agencies to 
enable appropriate actions to be taken to increase the safety of high risk victims of domestic 
violence and their children as well as to assess the risk that the perpetrator poses.  

Standing Together are also responsible for the coordination of the criminal justice response 
across the three boroughs including coordinating the domestic abuse response within the 
West London and Westminster Magistrates Court and Shared Services Criminal Justice 
Operational Group. In addition to this the service also includes the coordination of the 
Shared Services Risk and Review Operational Group.  

Page 12



This provision enables a true coordinated community response to tackling violence against 
women and girls, putting survivors at the centre of provision, holding perpetrators to account 
and safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.  

3.2.2. Outcomes and Performance 

The Specialist Domestic Violence Court (SDVC) in Hammersmith has seen an increase in 
caseload in Q2 which an average of 11 hearings per SDVC day compared with an average 
of 9 the previous quarter.  
The percentage of defendants convicted in the SDVC and the percentage of defendants who 
made early guilty pleas also increased.  
 
All outcomes for the Coordination Service were either met or exceeded for Q2 and early 
returns for Q3 indicate that this has continued.  
 
 

Performance 

Indicator 

Baseline  

2012/13 

Achieved 

2014/15 

Q1  

2015/16 

Q2 

2015/16 

Q3 

2015/16 

Percentage of 
defendants 
convicted at the 
Domestic Violence 
Courts in 
Hammersmith & 
Fulham and 
Westminster 

None set No target set 

WCC:63% 

Ham: 59% 

WCC: 

63% 

Ham: 

44% 

WCC: 
72%  
Ham:  

54%  

WCC:  
81% 
Ham:   

71% 

Percentage of 
defendants who 
make early guilty 
pleas at the 
Domestic Violence 
Courts in 
Hammersmith & 
Fulham and 
Westminster 

None set  No target set 

WCC:35% 

Ham: 42% 

WCC: 

32% 

Ham: 

41% 

WCC: 
43%  
Ham: 
36%  

WCC: 
42% 
Ham: 
46% 

 
Commissioners are happy with the standard of service being delivered. The volume of 
referrals for the LBHF MARAC is at 85%  The volume of referrals for LBHF MARAC is now 
at 85%, in line with best practice (80-100% of the recommended volume).  
 
Three MARACs were held in each borough in Q2, there have been no emergency MARACs. 
All of the outcomes and targets for this element of the service have been met or exceeded. 
For Hammersmith & Fulham 100 cases were discussed.  
 
It is believed that an increase in MARAC cases in Hammersmith and Fulham is due to the 
successes of the co-location of the Impact Project Hammersmith Police Station.  

 
 
 

3.3. SHARED SERVICES VAWG FINANCE 

Violence Against Women and Girls is a priority issue that crosses a number of departments 
across the Council. The expertise and funding for this service comes from several 
departments across the three boroughs as well as funding from the Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime.  

 

Page 13



  Y1 Totals Y2 Totals Total 

MOPAC £63,750 £85,000 £148,750 

COMMUNITY SAFETY UNIT £22,500 £30,000 £52,500 

LBHF CHILDREN’S SERVICES £9,600 £12,800 £22,400 

LBHF ADULT SOCIAL CARE £9,600 £12,800 £22,400 

THIRD SECTOR INVESTMENT FUND £93,708 £124,944 £218,652 

LBHF  ADULT SOCIAL CARE - SUPPORTING PEOPLE £48,750 £65,000 £113,750 

SUB TOTAL  £231,302 £308,403 £539,705 
 

Currently, MOPAC and the above departments have committed to contributing funding 
towards VAWG service until end of 16/17.  
 
 
3.4. IMPACT 

3.4.1. Project Summary 

The Impact Project aims to improve the criminal justice response to domestic abuse in 
Hammersmith & Fulham. It seeks to strengthen integrated working between partner 
agencies with the aim of improving outcomes for victims and their families. Impact is a 
unique project only running in Hammersmith & Fulham.  
 
The project team brings together the expertise and work of the Metropolitan Police, CPS, 
NPS, the local authority, Hammersmith Magistrates Court and third sector organisations 
including; Shepherds Bush Housing Group, Advance, and Standing Together. The partners 
range across the public, private and voluntary sector to coordinate an effective response.  
 
The project aims to understand the nature of attrition and develop solutions where 
improvements can be made. Collaborative working minimises delays in a case creating 
better outcomes for victims. Delays can lead to victims and witnesses becoming reluctant 
to engage with the criminal justice system at all.  

 
The project team is a collaboration of three third sector organisations; Shepherds Bush 
Housing Group, Standing Together, and Advance, with funding from MOPAC and 
Shepherd’s Bush Housing Group.  

The Impact Team: 

 Project Manager/Legal Advisor (SBHG): The Impact Project Manager has overall 
responsibility for coordinating and managing ‘Impact’.  The project manager also has 
a practical day-to-day role which involves working closely with the partners around 
legal matters and advice, case preparation, promoting thorough investigations, and 
keeping the Impact project relevant and useful to all partners. 

 1.5 Independent Domestic Violence Advocates (Advance): The criminal Justice 
Independent Domestic Violence Advocate (IDVA)  supports victims of domestic 
abuse going through the criminal justice system through practical and emotional 
support and provision of options.  

 Part Time Case Development Analyst (Standing Together): The Case Development 
Analyst has overall responsibility for proactively tracking cases through the criminal 
justice system from first arrest to final outcome, whatever the disposal may be.  The 

Page 14



case development analyst also works for Standing Together as the Specialist 
Domestic Abuse Court co-ordinator, so she has a unique overview of the cases from 
arrest through to sentence. 
 
3.4.2. Outcomes and Performance 

The Impact Project is set up to achieve three overarching outcomes which have been 
included in the agreements with all partners as the below Workstreams: 

Workstream 1:  
Reduce the risk posed by perpetrators of Domestic Abuse 
 
Workstream 2:  
Increase victim confidence in the criminal justice response to Domestic Abuse 
 
Workstream 3:  
Hold perpetrators to account.  
 
 

Workstream 1 
2012-13 
Baseline 

2013-14 2014-15 
2015-16 
Forecast 

Offences 1,150 1,169 1,368 1,604 

% of Sanction Detections that 
result in a charge 

57% 55.4% 54.8% 61.1% 

% of DV cases that result in a 
conviction 

59% 68% 74% 71.5% 

 

The number of offences is progressively increasing which indicates that reporting is 
increasing and therefore suggests the confidence in the criminal justice system is improving 
for victims of domestic violence.  

The percentage of charges continues to increase as a result of the Impact team working with 
community safety unit (CSU) officers to ensure that cases are thoroughly prepared for 
charge. The number of convictions has steadily increased since the start of the project. 
There has been a slight decline this year from 14/15, there are external factors which may 
account for this such as a decline in the number of prosecutors in the CPS domestic 
violence unit meaning that each prosecutor’s caseload has increased. It may also be, in part, 
attributed to the make-up of the CSU. Throughout 2015, there was a relatively settled team, 
with significant experience between them.  Around about September 2015, changes were 
implemented where experienced officers were being moved out of the CSU and new, less 
experienced officers were brought in to replace them.  Although the Impact team provides 
training and support to all new officers who have arrived into the CSU in 15/16, given the 
high number of changes to the unit, the team needs to settle in and develop skills and learn 
numerous processes, which are unique to the CSU.  

 

 

Page 15



 

Workstream 2 
2012-13 

2013-14 2014-15 
2015-16 
Forecast Baseline 

Unsuccessful cases 63 68 46 66 

% unsuccessful  cases due to 
victims or witnesses reasons 
(evidential) 

71 65 57 58 

% offences not resulting in a 
Sanction Detection 

50.1% 56.0% 61.5% 71.3% 

Number victims engaged with 
criminal justice IDVA 

178 247 111 81 

Number of of DV cases that result 
in a conviction 

92 144  133  153 

 
The Impact Project continues to work with response and community safety officers to 
strengthen the standard of cases so that outcomes remain positive even when the victim 
withdraws or refuses to give evidence. Therefore the percentage of cases that are 
unsuccessful due to the victim or witness evidential reasons decreased from the start of the 
project.  
 
The percentage of offences not resulting in a sanction detection has increased, however, 
this should be considered in tandem with the increase in the convictions rate.  It indicates 
that the cases that are being charged, although fewer, are evidentially stronger, thus 
resulting in a conviction.  Furthermore, of the new referrals to the criminal justice IDVA, 91% 
of those contacted, engaged with the service.  The result being that if they are supported 
they will remain in the process, which drives up the conviction rate.  The Impact team 
continues to work with the CSU officers to help them prepare strong cases to put up for 
charge but also welcomes the increase in the conviction rate. 
 
CSU officers do comment that there often occasions when the CPS want to bail the suspect 
rather than charge.  The CPS does not tend to have a uniform approach as to bail or charge.  
Officers often report to Impact that they have enough evidence to charge but the CPS may 
decide to bail and ask for withdrawal statements in cases where there is a reluctant witness, 
instead of charging and advising that a witness summons should be applied for.  What tends 
to follow is that the witness will feel despondent that the case was not charged and will 
withdraw their support. 
 

Workstream 3 
2012-13 
Baseline 

2013-14 2014-15 
2015-16 
Forecast 

 % of Sanction Detections that result 
in a charge 

57% 55.4% 54.8% 61.1% 

% victims who report feeling safer 
following engagement with CJS IDVA 

69.1% 64.4% 91.1% 84.1% 

% victims engaged with CJS IDVA at 
reduced risk of further harm.  

79.8% 77.3% 82.0% 85.4% 

 
The percentage of victims reporting feeling safer following engagement with the Criminal 
Justice System (CJS) IDVA is on an upward trend in comparison with the baseline data (pre-

Page 16



Impact project figures) despite a small decrease since 2014-15.  There could be a number of 
reasons for the slight decrease, one of which is that victims often report feeling different 
levels of safety throughout the criminal justice process, depending on whether the case had 
a positive outcome or not.  For example, if the case did result in a conviction but the court 
did not grant a restraining order, the victim may feel less safe until a civil remedy such as a 
non-molestation order is in place.  Another example as to why a victim may not feel safe is 
that the question may have been asked directly following a positive outcome, but it may take 
them a while to believe that they really are safe.    The higher percentage of 91.1% of victims 
feeling safer in 2014/15 may also have been as a result of the CJ IDVA closing more cases 
than usual. The percentage of victims who report feeling at reduced risk following 
engagement with the CJS IDVA is continuing to increase. 
 
In February 2016, the Specialist Domestic Abuse Court was successful in obtaining the first 
ever European Protection Order (EPO) issued in England and Wales in one of Hammersmith 
and Fulham’s domestic abuse cases. The legislation around EPOs came into force in 
January 2015, it means that bail conditions, or conditions of a restraining order, can travel 
with the victim therefore affording them protection in a specified EU member state. This 
involved the Impact project working closely with the Independent Domestic Violence 
Advocate, the officer in the case, and the CPS and  is a fantastic example of coordinated 
partnership working. 
 
 

3.4.3. Finance 

The Impact Project is funded as part of the London Crime Prevention Fund through the 
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime. The project commenced in April 2013 and will 
continue under the current contract until March 2017. MOPAC provide £90,100 funding for 
the project and Shepherd’s Bush Housing Group provide £98,000.  

 
3.5. OTHER VAWG PROJECTS 

In addition to these key services delivered in the borough, there are some smaller projects to 
offer a more holistic response to Violence Against Women and Girls. These projects tie in 
with the Shared Services VAWG Strategy. 
 

3.5.1. Partnership to End Harmful Practices (PEHP) 

Harmful Practices includes Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), Forced Marriage (FM), Honour 
Based Violence (HBV) and Faith Based Abuse (FBA). The PEHP delivers the Harmful 
Practices Pilot and the FGM Pilot. The partnership, led by the Iranian and Kurdish Women’s 
Rights Organisation, delivers services across Hammersmith & Fulham, Kensington and 
Chelsea, and Westminster, and is funded by MOPAC and the Department for Education. 
 
The Harmful Practices Pilot  

The Harmful Practices Pilot aims to improve the way health, education, the voluntary sector 
and criminal justice agencies identify and respond to harmful practices. The key overarching 
aims of the project are early identification and prevention, safeguarding and support, 
enforcement and prosecutions and community engagement. 

There are two key elements to the pilot. Firstly, two comprehensive harmful practices 
training packages, and secondly, a specialist harmful practices advocacy/educator service. 
These elements will be supported by community engagement activity.  

 

Page 17



The FGM Pilot  

In December the DfE announced that MOPAC had been successful in gaining an award 
from the Social Care Innovation Programme funding . This bid sought  to enable an 
enhanced pilot model, building on the initial provision provided by Deputy Mayor For Policing 
and Crime. It is intended to supplement a specific workstream to address FGM through 
additionally targeted at health care professionals and borough-based social care teams.  

The aim of this activity is to proactively prevent girls from being cut. The children at greatest 
risk are the female children of FGM victims; the starting point for this innovation is therefore 
identification of adult victims of FGM through a joint approach between midwifery and social 
care services, in order to offer timely and proactive intervention. 

The key overarching themes of the bid; 

 Girls at risk are identified pre-birth through proactive information sharing between 
Maternity Services and Social Care 

 Referrals leading to timely and effective intervention with mothers who are FGM victims 
and their families, led by social care in partnership with appropriate community 
organisations 

 Work with identified families leading to them choosing not to subject their daughters to 
FGM.  

 

3.5.2. Perpetrator Pilot 

The Perpetrator Pilot aims to increase the identification of, and interventions with, 
perpetrators of domestic abuse across the three boroughs. The pilot is funded by MOPAC 
through the London Crime Prevention Fund until March 2016. 

Domestic Violence Intervention Project (DVIP) is delivering the pilot. The first two months of 
the pilot have been used for mobilisation and staff recruitment. DVIP has hired additional 
staff (two full time posts and one 0.8 post) to work across three distinct areas of tackling 
perpetrators: Criminal Justice Provision, Family Support and Young People.  

The criminal justice worker has begun delivering briefings and training to police officers and 
is due to start taking referrals in February 2016. The worker will also contribute to the 
Domestic Violence Perpetrator Programmes (DVPPs) delivery group across the three 
boroughs.  

The two family support workers are based in RBKC, they will liaise with other Domestic 
Violence Intervention Programme (DVIP) workers in Hammersmith and Fulham and 
Westminster who are funded through other projects to share best practice and learning.  

Two part time support workers for young people will be co-located in the Youth Offending 
Service (YOS) and work with young people aged 11-18 as well as parents. This provision 
will support at least 30 families across the shared services area including one-to-one 
sessions, group work, and supporting cases with link to Child Sexual Exploitation and 
Serious Youth Violence. Referrals have already begun.  

In the next quarter, DVIP will continue to deliver briefings and presentations to raise 
awareness of the pilot and will begin taking referrals across all three delivery locations. The 
first outcome data will be provided in the next quarter.  

 

Page 18



3.5.3. H&F Social Care Pilot 

The Hammersmith & Fulham Social Care Pilot is a partnership project between H&F Social 
Care, Standing Together, Advance, and Domestic Violence Intervention Project (DVIP). It 
aims to provide co-located specialist support in both Child Protection and Early Help 
services so that social care practitioners have on site access to support their work with 
families where domestic abuse is an issue. It will also provide an enhanced risk and need-
focused service keeping children and survivors safe, holding perpetrators to account and 
providing them with support to change. 

The project includes 1.5 IDVAs and a Domestic Violence Intervention Project (DVIP) worker 
is co-located in Early Help in LBHF children’s services. This pilot began in September 2015 
for two years and is delivered jointly by DVIP and Advance, with coordination by Standing 
Together. The team delivers assessment and direct work separately with perpetrators and 
survivors and also trains and supports children’s services professionals to respond more 
effectively and consistently to cases where domestic abuse is present.  

3.5.4. Pan-London DV Service 

MOPAC commissioned Victim Support to run a Pan-London Domestic Violence service and 
mobilisation began in April 2015. As part of this, the three boroughs were allocated one full 
time IDVA post, a full time DV repeat victimisation caseworker and 1.5 DV caseworkers who 
can support medium and standard risk cases. 

Referrals to the 2.5 DV caseworkers began slower than anticipated. A meeting was held in 
January with Advance to develop stronger referral pathways between and to Victim Support 
and Angelou to address capacity issues and ensure that all DV resources available in the 
Shared Services area are being utilised in the most effective way and cases are allocated 
according to the appropriate risk levels. effectively.  

 
 

 

4. RISKS AND ISSUES 

The funding for both the VAWG Services and for Impact is due to cease at the end of 
financial year 16/17. As both services are funded through the London Crime Prevention 
Fund there is a risk that the funding will not be available after the existing contracts finish. It 
is not possible to confirm that the LCPF will continue as a funding stream, and even if the 
fund continues, whether the projects will continue to be funded as part of the scheme.  

In addition to this, there will be a new Mayor following the May 2016 London Mayoral 
elections. Currently, we do not know whether VAWG will remain a priority.  

The success of the Impact project is, in part, due to the co-location of the Impact team in the 
Hammersmith Police Station near to the Community Safety Unit. However, the  Police 
Station is due to undergo a refurbishment, it has not yet been confirmed where the CSU will 
be moving to during this time and whether there will be additional suitable provision for the 
Impact team.  

 

5. CONCLUSIONS 

Members are asked to consider the weight and importance of these services. The effects of 
Domestic Violence and Violence Against Women and Girls often go unnoticed by many, 
these issues need specific and tailored support from specialist professionals.  

 

Page 19



1 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
Community Safety, Environment and Residents Services 
Policy and Accountability Committee 
 
2nd March 2016 
 

 

Update on SuDS Schemes 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - Briefing 
 

Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected:  
All 

Accountable Director: Mahmood Siddiqi - Director for Transport and Highways 
 

Report Author: George Warren, Flood Risk 
Manager 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 753 6991 
E-mail: george.warren@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1. This report provides a brief overview of the various Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) projects undertaken within the Borough at the request of the Community 
Safety, Environment & Residents Services (CSERS) PAC. These are in line with the 
administration’s priority to implement SuDS on a wide-scale across the borough to 
reduce the risk and impact of flooding. The Manifesto states that: 

“We will also stop the growing concreting over of open space in order to prevent the 
increased run-off of surface water, and will insist that new parking areas and hard 
standings are rainwater permeable”. 

1.2. Projects included within this report: 

 SuDS projects completed within 2015 
o Australia Road – Bridget Joyce Square  
o Life+ Housing Projects – Queen Caroline Estate, Maystar Estate & 

Cheesemans Terrace 
o Kenmont ‘Rain’ Gardens 

 SuDS projects currently under construction 
o Counters Creek SuDS Pilot Schemes - Melina Road & Mendora Road  
o Talgarth Road 

 Future Projects 
o Stevenage Road 
o Edith Road 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



Update on SuDS Schemes 

2 

 

SuDS Projects Completed Within 2015 

1.3. Australia Road 

1.3.1. A Neighbourhood and Corridor Scheme which developed into a flagship SuDS 
Scheme. The proposals were to convert the existing road into a pedestrian and 
cyclist space with limited vehicular access for emergency and maintenance vehicles 
whilst also helping to provide a safer link between the Early Years Centre and the 
playgrounds (on opposing sides of the road). 

  

Figure 1 – Australia Road prior to works  

1.3.2. Initial neighbourhood wide consultation with residents, businesses and councillors 
was undertaken in March 2013 as part of the White City Neighbourhood scheme. 
During this neighbourhood wide consultation, the initial idea to convert part of 
Australia Road into a pedestrian space was raised by Randolph Beresford Early 
Years Centre and supported by both Team White City and the White City Residents’ 
Association. Further consultation was undertaken on-site with Team White City, 
Randolph Beresford Early Years Centre and the White City Residents Association 
between March 2013 and March 2014 as the concept design for the scheme was 
being developed. 

1.3.3. Public consultation regarding the concept design for the Australia Road pedestrian 
space was undertaken in February and March 2014. Residents responded to the 
consultation either during the public meeting held on 18 February 2014 at the White 
City Community Centre or via online and postal options. 

1.3.4. Approval to undertake the concept design and consultation for pedestrian space was 
originally granted on 2nd September 2013 (White City Neighbourhood Project - 
Significant Works, TTSCM Decision Report). Funding approval was granted for the 
overall LIP programme (through the Full Cabinet Report - TfL Annual Integrated 
Transport Investment Programme 2014/15, within which the Australia Road Scheme 
was highlighted,) on 16 September 2013. Additional spending approval and approval 
to proceed to construction from detailed design and consultation was later granted 
on 6th February 2015 (Australia Road Corridor and SuDS Scheme, Cabinet Member 
for Environment, Transport and Residents Services Decision Report). 

Page 21



Update on SuDS Schemes 

3 

 

  

Figure 2 – Artist’s Impression of Scheme  

1.3.5. The final design involved converting the existing road into a pedestrian and cyclist 
space with limited vehicular access for emergency and maintenance vehicles only, 
providing a significantly safer link from the Early Years Centre to the playground. A 
large events space for the community to use was also created beside the school 
entrance with CCTV introduced to the road and the provision of electricity and water 
points for managed use during an event. The addition of a shared community space 
and communal meeting point aims to invoke a sense of neighbourhood pride and 
community spirit. 

1.3.6. At the heart of the design are the various multi-functional SuDS features. The road 
has been constructed in permeable paving, capturing the rainfall and directing it 
below the surface to a series of bio-retention basins and raingardens. The existing 
downpipes from the Early Years Centre and Playground Centre roofs having also 
been disconnected from the combined sewer and diverted to these raingardens and 
basins. These areas have been heavily planted to help utilise the rainwater, provide 
biodiversity benefits and create an enhanced landscape for the community. Over 
2,500 plants and 50 trees with a wide variety of species ranging from grasses, bulbs 
and herbaceous perennials to Himalayan Birch trees are to be planted within these 
spaces, converting a traditional highway environment into a biophilic oasis for the 
community to enjoy. 

1.3.7. The bio-retention basins and raingardens attenuate the water prior to a controlled 
discharge to the existing combined sewer. The outlets have been designed to be 
protected from blockage, which greatly reduces the maintenance requirements. The 
hydraulic design has endeavoured to reduce flows as much as physically possible. 
Individual flow controls have been sized to restrict flows to below 1 litre per second, 
thus achieving runoff rates to the sewer less than greenfield rates up to the 1 in 30yr 
Annual Recurrence Interval (ARI) and reducing the overall annual flow volumes to 
the sewer by over 50%. The approach taken to the hydraulic design goes well 
beyond the normal remit of compliance and provides much greater benefits to the 
sewer systems. A site specific maintenance plan has been developed to ensure the 
landscape is cared for well in to the future. 

1.3.8. Monitoring equipment is due to be installed to collect data on the effectiveness of the 
SuDS systems. A full weather station will be located on the roof of the Early Years 
Centre to collect rainfall, wind and temperature data. Remote devices will be installed 
in each of the basins to monitor the soil moisture levels and at the controlled 
discharge points to monitor the flows entering the sewer. All the raw data will be 
gathered remotely and interpreted into useful performance information which will 
then be made available to interested parties.  

Page 22



Update on SuDS Schemes 

4 

 

1.3.9. Due to the high level of stakeholder involvement we have been able to engage with 
and educate the community on sustainability issues. In particular, we aim to create 
an awareness of the environmental benefits within the Early Years Centre and the 
other nine schools (two secondary, five primary and two special schools) within one 
kilometre of the site. This will be achieved through the installation of three education 
boards describing how the various SuDS features work. In addition to this members 
of the project team have attended assemblies at the local schools to further educate 
the local children about the scheme. The positive responses to date have been 
extremely encouraging from the local community. 

1.3.10. The Australia Road Scheme has become a flagship SuDS project. While runoff rates 
to the combined sewer network have been significantly reduced, we have also 
witnessed the advantages of sound community involvement. In order to maximise 
the overall achievements of the scheme, both the environmental and community 
benefits have been considered equally. The community involvement has maximised 
the environmental benefits with the agreement to incorporate runoff from both the 
Early Years Centre’s and the Playground Building’s roofs into the final design. 
Through the same process the neighbourhood has gained a more usable space with 
a much better outlook that is safer, greener and has helped to educate the 
community in the process.  

1.3.11. Hydraulic modelling carried out as part of the Surface Water Management Plan 
(SWMP) shows this section of Australia Road to be a Flooding Hotspot. The 
implementation of SuDS here will help to address this flooding issue as well as 
provide amenity and biodiversity benefits. 

1.3.12. The area has been honorifically named after the late Bridget Joyce, a childcare 
worker who worked with LBHF children for over 50 years including at the Early Years 
Centre. 

1.3.13. Physical works, undertaken by F M Conways, began in March 2015 and were 
completed in mid-October 2015. An opening ceremony occurred on 16th November 
2015 where the space was officially opened by Cllr Harcourt (Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport & Residents Services). Subsequently the space was used 
for the White City Christmas Fair on 11th December 2015 and the Annual W12 
Festival has already been scheduled to take place in this space from 2016 onwards. 

1.3.14. The project was funded through a combination of TfL LIP (Local Implementation 
Plans) Funding, Lead Local Flood Authority Funding and an additional contribution 
from the GLA.  

   

Page 23



Update on SuDS Schemes 

5 

 

   

Figure 3 – Australia Road post construction works 

1.4. LiFE+ 

1.4.1. LBHF officers working with Groundwork London submitted a successful funding bid 
to the European Union’s EU Life+ programme ‘Climate Proofing Social Housing 
Landscapes’ for a grant to deliver environmental improvements on housing estates 
within the borough in early 2014.  

1.4.2. The three sites identified for environmental improvements were Queen Caroline 
Estate W12, Chessman’s Terrace W14, and the Maystar Estate (Cyril Thatcher / 
Richard Knight / Eric Macdonald Houses) SW6. 

1.4.3. The improvements to be delivered through the programme are: 

 2,500m2 of enhanced green infrastructure 

 25% increase in permeable surfaces 

 20,000m3 of water retention capacity 

 600 trees planted 

 600m2 of green roofs 

 400m2 of food growing capacity 

 10 rain water harvesting systems 

1.4.4. Groundwork London and LBHF Housing have led on the public consultation, with 
drop in sessions held on a regular basis to keep the residents of the estates updated 
with progress. 

1.4.5. Capacity building sessions have also been organised as part of the project to 
educate staff within the housing estates teams about the benefits of Green 
Infrastructure SuDS and how they should be maintained. 

1.4.6. Works began on site at Maystar Estate (Cyril Thatcher / Richard Knight /Eric 
MacDonald) in March 2014 with extensive landscaping to incorporate SuDS features 
such as swales, raingardens and bio-retention basins. A large scale green roof was 
also installed on Richard Knight House, which has tied in with planned maintenance 
to the roof for efficiency. 

Page 24



Update on SuDS Schemes 

6 

 

  

   

Figure 4 - Richard Knight House (Maystar) 

1.4.7. Work has been completed at Queen Caroline Estate, with downpipes disconnected, 
swales & raingardens excavated and planted and new features installed including 
community planting beds. 

  

Page 25



Update on SuDS Schemes 

7 

 

  

Figure 5 – Queen Caroline Estate  

1.4.8. Works have recently commenced at Cheesemans Terrace.  

 

Figure 6 - Cheesemans Terrace 

1.4.9. Most of the physical works have been complete at QCE and Maystar however there 
are still training sessions to be completed and the physical works at Cheesemans 
Terrace are still ongoing. The project is on course to be completed in March 2016. 

1.4.10. The overall 3 year programme budget is €1,615,636. The Council has made 
provision within the Housing Revenue Account business plan to fund at current 
exchange rates a sum of €441k (£359k) from within the Housing Revenue Account 
over 3 years. Additionally, the Council will incur a further €316k (£257k) of 
expenditure and this will be met from the EU Life grant. Groundwork will contribute 
€367k (£299k) from its own resources and a further €492k (£401k) of expenditure will 
be funded from the EU Life grant. This equates to LBHF leveraging a total of circa 
£957k of external funding towards the proposed projects. 

1.4.11. This project recently won the Sustainable Water Industry Group (SWIG) Award for 
Urban Greening. 

Page 26



Update on SuDS Schemes 

8 

 

1.5. Kenmont Gardens 

1.5.1. A Neighbourhood and Corridor Scheme which developed to incorporate SuDS. The 
area was previously carriageway and had subsequently been pedestrianised. The 
carriageway was still in existence but had been closed off with bollards. The area 
was raised and partially landscaped, with three trees planted, but it was in general a 
fairly low grade landscaped area.  

  

Figure 7 – Kenmont Gardens prior to works  

1.5.2. The design significantly improved this space through the introduction of an ovoid 
area of seating surrounded by hard and soft landscaping. Lighting was also improved 
and a sustainable drainage system put in place. The SuDS scheme is a retrofit to the 
existing drainage system of a deep combined storm and foul sewer fed by gullies 
that were formerly in the carriageway. 

1.5.3. The community were involved throughout the project, with concept designs sent out 
for public consultation in September 2014, from which a positive response was 
received and a preferred option selected. In addition to this a consistent dialogue 
was maintained with College Park Residents Association (CoPRA) and Kenmont 
Primary School. 

1.5.4. The scheme includes the following SuDS / flood risk reduction elements: 

 Permeable Paving  Geo-Cellular Storage 

 Raingardens  Controlled Sewer Release  

1.5.5. The design restricts runoff to greenfield for events up to the 1 in 10yr ARI with 
exceedence routes to existing gullies during larger events. 

Page 27



Update on SuDS Schemes 

9 

 

 

Figure 8 - Education Poster for Project 

1.5.6. Work began on site on 9th January 2015 and the main physical works were 
completed on 31st March 2015.  

1.5.7. CoPRA and Kenmont Primary School were also heavily involved in the latter stages, 
with pupils of the school creating a series of clay tiles, with the supervision of a 
professional potter, which were installed around the new ovoid. The cost of the tiles 
were met through a combination of fundraising by the school and a contribution from 
the council. A maintenance fund has also been setup by the Primary School for the 
tiles, reducing the financial burden on the council for any future damages to these 
pieces.  

1.5.8. In addition to this members of the project team presented to the pupils of Kenmont 
Primary School at an assembly on the 24th March 2015, providing a brief 
explanation on the water cycle, how the scheme works and the benefits it will bring to 
the community. Following this a community planting event occurred on the 4th June 
2015 (see Figure 9). 

1.5.9. The project was funded through a combination of TfL LIP Funding and Lead Local 
Flood Authority Funding.  

Page 28



Update on SuDS Schemes 

10 

 

   

Figure 9 – Community Planting Event 

   

   

Figure 10 – Kenmont Gardens Post Construction  

Page 29



Update on SuDS Schemes 

11 

 

2. SuDS projects currently under construction 

2.1. Counters Creek SuDS Retrofit Pilot Schemes 

2.1.1. This is a Thames Water Utilities Limited (TWUL) project to trial the installation of 
SuDS within the highway with a focus on their flood risk benefits. Three streets were 
selected, two of which are within LBHF, these are Mendora Road and Melina Road. 
Note that a similar scheme is being proposed for RBKC’s Arundel Gardens. 

2.1.2. Mendora Road involves the installation of permeable paving within the parking bays 
on each side of the road, with underground storage provided by geo-cellular 
structures on one side and aggregate on the other, with a flow control outlet to the 
existing sewer.  

 

Figure 11 – Artist’s impression of Mendora Road  

  

    

Figure 12 – Photos of Construction at Mendora Road 

Page 30



Update on SuDS Schemes 

12 

 

 
2.1.3. Melina Road involves the installation of four rain gardens along the pedestrianised 

stretch of the road, from outside the entrance to the Hammersmith Academy to the 
large area of hardstanding in front of Cathnor Park.  

2.1.4. The raingarden planting has been specifically selected to complement the existing 
planting within Cathnor Park. Below the raingarden planting are geo-cellular storage 
units with a controlled outlet to the sewer. 

 

Figure 13 - Artist’s impression of Melina Road 

  

  

Figure 14 – Photos of Raingarden Construction at Melina Road  

2.1.5. The schemes include the following SuDS / flood risk reduction elements: 

 Permeable Paving  Geo-Cellular Storage 

 Raingardens  Controlled Sewer Release  

2.1.6. The storage in both cases has sufficient capacity to store surface water runoff from 
this area for an event up to the 100 year event plus an allowance for climate change 
(+30%). This will provide an increased flood protection to the immediate area as well 
as freeing up significant capacity within the combined sewer network for areas 
downstream to potentially drain to. 

2.1.7. The SuDS pilot project communication and consultation process, led by TWUL 
throughout, began in June 2012 and has taken a twin-track approach to community 

Page 31



Update on SuDS Schemes 

13 

 

engagement, undertaking a wide community education and engagement programme 
with a more targeted engagement of residents specifically on the shortlisted streets 
and final pilot streets. Following evening consultation workshops in December 2012 
at both town halls for residents and community representatives, a more focussed 
street-specific consultation exercise was carried out during 2013. As the design was 
refined regular drop in sessions were organised, giving residents and interested 
parties an opportunity to view the designs in more detail and speak with the project 
team. LBHF officers were in attendance at all sessions. The latest sessions took 
place at local venues on the 16th and 18th of February with further sessions planned 
in April. 

2.1.8. TWUL are funding the construction of both projects, which are to be carried out by 
LBHF Highway’s Principal Framework Contractors, including the monitoring and 
maintenance of the installations for a period of 24 months post completion of the 
construction works. The installation of the SuDS at both sites will come at no cost to 
the Council, with officers time also funded by TWUL for the project. The capital costs 
for both schemes is forecast to be just over one million pounds. Once this 24 month 
period has expired, the  monitoring and maintenance responsibilities will lie with the 
Council thereafter.  

2.1.9. Works for both schemes commenced on 11th January 2016. Progress on both sites 
has been good. Weekly progress meetings are being held to facilitate open 
communication between all parties and both sites are currently tracking their original 
programmes. Mendora Road has an estimated works programme of 32 weeks, so is 
due for completion in August 2016. The Melina Road works have an estimated works 
programme of 14 weeks, so is due for completion in April 2016. 

2.2. Talgarth Road 

2.2.1. This is a predominantly Air Quality focused project with elements of SuDS 
incorporated with a genuine view to repeatability. 

2.2.2. Plans have been developed for the installation of green infrastructure along the 
stretch of shared space along Talgarth Road between Butterwick and Shortlands to 
the north of the Hammersmith Flyover. The proposed design intends to reduce the 
exposure of pedestrians and cyclists to the poor air quality in this area of the 
Hammersmith Town Centre whilst incorporating Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) and providing a safe and secure setting. 

2.2.3. A tall grass, Miscanthus, has been chosen as the main barrier plant.  The plant will 
grow to approximately 1.8m in height and act as a barrier to traffic emissions.  It is a 
hearty plant that will be cut back once in the Spring.  The grass is considered light 
and airy and not a hard, impenetrable border to ensure that people using the site do 
not feel enclosed. 

2.2.4. A border of Euphorbia and Geraniums will be planted between the Miscanthus and 
the bicycle path.  Narrow, shallow, raised beds planted with Hebe will be placed 
along the northern edge of the pavement along the border of the Novotel building. 
These plants are robust and will remain year-round.  

2.2.5. Air quality monitors will be placed on either side of the grass to measure particulate 
matter and nitrogen dioxide levels on the road side and on the pedestrian side of the 
installation simultaneously to demonstrate the extent of air quality benefits from the 
greening. 

Page 32



Update on SuDS Schemes 

14 

 

2.2.6. Some trees along this stretch are in a poor state and need to be replaced and others 
need to be removed altogether with new trees to be placed nearby to facilitate the 
movement of the bicycle path.   

2.2.7. A 26m section of the roadside planting has been designed to accept runoff from the 
highways and footway, thus reducing the surface water flow to the combined sewer 
and providing additional capacity within the already over capacity Counters Creek 
Catchment. The bio-retention basin will have an engineered sub-surface construction 
to a greater depth than the other stretches of planting in order to provide below 
ground attenuation for the surface water flows with a controlled release to the sewer. 
Exceedance flows, during extreme events, have been designed to be directed 
towards the existing road gully.  

2.2.8. The bio-retention basin will include the same plant species as the rest of the 
roadside planted areas to pilot how these species perform when experiencing runoff 
from the surrounding area compared to conventional planting beds. Should the 
species thrive in this environment then the intention is to repeat this along other 
stretches of highway within the borough to help tackle both air quality and flooding 
issues. 

2.2.9. This project is funded through a combination of TfL LIP Funding, the London Mayor’s 
Air Quality Fund (MAQF), Section 106 Funding, Lead Local Flood Authority Funding 
and private funding via the Hammersmith Business Improvement District (BID).   

2.2.10. Full approval for the project was granted in October 2015 by the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport & Residents Services and construction commenced on 6th 
January 2016 and are due to be completed by mid/late March 2016.  

    

Figure 15 – Construction of Roadside Bio-retention Basin Section of Footway (showing the 
perforated pipe at the base and bespoke roadside inlets) 

3. Future Projects 

3.1. Stevenage Road 

3.1.1. This scheme was included within the 2015/16 Environmental Improvements LIP 
funding submission.  

3.1.2. It is proposed to adapt the existing pedestrianised section of Stevenage Road beside 
Rowberry Mead. Surface water currently flows from the existing footway in the centre 
of Stevenage road and enters the combined sewer through the existing gullies and 
connection arrangements. The selected proposal involves the installation of 

Page 33



Update on SuDS Schemes 

15 

 

“Stockholm Tree Pits”. The proposed tree pits are located between fourteen existing 
trees. “Stockholm Tree Pits” are essentially long pits with a raingarden on top and 
angular stone underneath- through which the tree roots are able to grow. This allows  
the tree pit to take on more runoff surface water. Such tree pits should achieve a 
positive environmental and social effect. 

3.1.3. The proposed scheme is designed to re-direct 100%  of surface water away from 5 
existing gullies and capture runoff from a catchment area of approximately 840m². 
The proposal will divert water into the raingardens rather than the gullies, which will 
remain as an exceedance route. It is expected that in small to medium rainfall 
events, all of the surface runoff will be contained within the raingarden and tree pits 
to be discharged through infiltration and evapo-transpiration. In heavier rainfall 
events a buried overflow pipe will carry excess water to the combined sewer system, 
though this will be a greatly reduced quantity and as the water will be detained and 
released more gradually into the system, the contribution to downstream flood risk 
from this catchment will be greatly reduced. 

3.1.4. The rain gardens will be densely planted with low maintenance grasses and shrubs, 
capable of thriving in the required conditions. This will provide visual appeal and a 
greener outlook for local residents. The exact planting for this scheme is still to be 
determined. 

  

Figure 16 –Stevenage Road Photo and Visualisation (Before & After) 

3.1.5. The scheme is to be funded through a combination of TfL LIP Funding and Lead 
Local Flood Authority Funding. 

3.1.6. The scheme is currently being consulted on until the 22nd February 2016. After the 
consultation process is complete, all responses will be analysed and a decision will 
be made regarding continuation of the project through to construction. Any potential 
issues will be flagged with the Cabinet Member to ensure that any residents’ 
concerns are correctly considered.  

3.1.7. Construction is estimated to take 8 -10 weeks. 

3.2. Edith Road 

3.2.1. This scheme was also included within the 2015/16 Environmental Improvements LIP 
funding submission.  

3.2.2. The selected proposal involves the installation of a raingarden within an existing 
unused hatched area at the ends of the angled parking bays near the corner of 
Glazbury Rd and Edith Rd. Currently, surface water flows from the existing Edith 

Page 34



Update on SuDS Schemes 

16 

 

Road carriageway and enters the combined sewer through the existing road gully 
and connection arrangements. The proposal will divert water away from the 
traditional gully inlet and into the raingarden. It is expected that during frequent and 
moderately heavy rainfall events, all of the surface runoff will be contained within the 
raingarden to be discharged through infiltration and evapo-transpiration. In heavier 
rainfall events a buried overflow pipe will carry excess water to the combined sewer 
system, though this will be at a reduced rate and quantity and as the water will be 
retained and released gradually into the system it will reduce the contribution to 
downstream flood risk from this catchment. 

3.2.3. The proposed scheme is designed to re-direct 100% of surface water away from the 
existing gully and capture runoff from a catchment area of up to 160m². This will 
provide improved flood protection for the immediate area as well as freeing up 
additional capacity within the combined sewer network for areas downstream to drain 
to. 

3.2.4. The raingarden will be densely planted with low maintenance grasses and shrubs, 
capable of thriving in the required conditions. This will provide visual appeal and a 
greener outlook for local residents. The exact planting for this scheme is still to be 
determined. 

  

Figure 17 – Edith Road Photo and Visualisation (Before & After) 

3.2.5. The scheme is to be funded through a combination of TfL LIP Funding and Lead 
Local Flood Authority Funding. 

3.2.6. The scheme is currently being consulted on until the 22nd February 2016. After the 
consultation process is complete, all responses will be analysed and a decision will 
be made regarding continuation of the project through to construction. Any potential 
issues will be flagged with the Cabinet Member to ensure that any residents’ 
concerns are correctly considered.  

3.2.7. Construction is estimated to take 2 weeks. 

4. Summary 

4.1. This report demonstrates that we are fully committed to the implementation of SuDS 
and are aspiring to become the flagship London Borough for this. We believe that 
this not only helps support the desire for LBHF to become the “Best Council” but it 
also aligns with the administration’s Manifesto pledge which states that: 

“We will also stop the growing concreting over of open space in order to prevent the 
increased run-off of surface water, and will insist that new parking areas and hard 
standings are rainwater permeable”. 

Page 35



Update on SuDS Schemes 

17 

 

4.2. In order to make these projects possible we have utilised funding from the Lead 
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) which is provided to the Council by the Department for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA).  

4.3. Through the construction of these SuDS projects valuable knowledge and skills have 
been developed within the Council and it’s framework contractors which will be 
carried forward to future projects. We are also using these experiences to better 
inform the LLFA’s comments to planning applications’ Sustainable Drainage 
Strategies, a requirement for all major planning applications as of April 2015. 

4.4. We are developing a list of potential SuDS opportunities within the Borough and are 
working hard to align them with other programmed works to ensure efficiency is 
achieved. 

 

Page 36



 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT & RESIDENTS 
SERVICES POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
2nd March 2016 

Officer review of the Hammersmith Gyratory consultation by Transport  for 
London 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services 

 

Open Report 

Classification:  For Scrutiny Review & Comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 

Accountable Director; Mahmood Siddiqi, Director for Transport and Highways 
 

Report Author: Richard Duffill. Borough Cycling Officer. Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 1749 
E-mail: 
Richard.Duffill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
1.      EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. This report outlines officer responses and recommendations to the Transport for London 

(TfL) consultation on the provision of dedicated cycle lanes through the northern section of 
the Hammersmith gyratory. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1.  That the Committee review the report and the TfL proposals, and comment on its contents. 
 
3.        INTRODUCTION  

3.1 Transport for London (“TfL”) are consulting on the Hammersmith Gyratory Better Junction 
scheme. The Better Junctions schemes are part of TfL’s investment of £4bn in the road 
network. . As part of this plan, TfL are reviewing junctions and gyratories across London to 
make them safer for all road users, including cyclists, and  to make journey times more 
reliable. 

 
3.2 The Mayor’s Cycling Vision was released in early 2012 and contains commitments to a 

number of ambitious outcomes which will transform cycling  in London.  The Better 
Junctions Programme contributes to the “Safer Streets for the Bike” Outcome and commits 
to “...widening to allow more space for cyclists, creating more segregated cycle lanes...”. 
“...introduce[ing] more cycle-only paths or phases through junctions and gyratories...” These 
statements point towards the minimum standard for cycling facilities that this project aims to 
deliver. 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Richard.Duffill@lbhf.gov.uk


3.3 The new Labour administrations manifesto entitled The Change We Need,  outlines 11 key 
actions for the borough relevant to cycling, including creating a greener borough, being 
more fair to drivers, and improving the borough for cyclists. The manifesto also outlined the 
need to encourage more and safer cycling. 

3.4 The new Cycling Strategy 2015 was adopted by Cabinet on 12 October 2015. We are 
determined to ensure our roads are as safe as they can be for cyclists, and that our 
infrastructure is suitable for our predicted growth in population, and our aspiration of getting 
8% of our residents travelling by cycle each day. 

 
3.5 One of the most intimidating junctions that was identified by the public in the Strategy 

consultation, was the Hammersmith Gyratory. 
 
3.6 Improvements to Hammersmtih Gyratory are required in order to reduce the number of 

cycle collisions and to contribute to the Mayor’s cycling growth strategy as set out in the 
Mayor’s Transport Strategy (“MTS”) and his casualty reduction target.  

 
3.7 The aim is not only to provide improved facilities for existing cyclists but also to attract new 

cyclists by breaking down negative perceptions associated with the dangers. 
 
3.8 TfL are proposing to give cyclists dedicated space and separate cycle signals at junctions 

on the northern side of the gyratory. This would offer cyclists a more comfortable and direct 
route between King Street and Hammersmith Road, bridging the gap in the proposed A315 
cycling route that the gyratory currently creates. 

 

4. How does this fit in with wider plans for Hammersmith town centre? 

 
4.1 TfL and Hammersmith & Fulham Council are working together on ambitious plans for a 

long-term transformation of Hammersmith town centre. 
 
4.2 TfL are proposing shorter-term improvements to improve safety and connectivity for existing 

cyclists and support the Council’s cycling strategy to increase the number of new cyclists in 
the area.  

 
5. Proposed layout changes 
 
5.1  To improve conditions and safety for cyclists the scheme will: 
 

 Provide a segregated two-way cycle track on the north side of Hammersmith Broadway. 
Cyclists would be physically separated from traffic by a kerb. TfL would make room for the 
cycle track by reallocating space from some sections of the wide pavement on the south 
side of the road. 

 

 Separate cyclists and motor vehicle movements at junctions; cyclists would have their own 
traffic signals which would operate at different times to those for motor traffic. 

 

 Extend the eastbound contraflow cycle track on King Street to allow cyclists to reach the 
gyratory from Hammersmith Town Hall without having to follow Studland Street, Glenthorne 
Road and Beadon Road. The cycle track would be physically separated from traffic.  

 

 Provide a short two-way section of cycle track on Queen Caroline Street to allow access to 
Blacks Road and Hammersmith Bridge Road. 

 

Page 38



 Enable cyclists to pass through the island at the junction of Hammersmith Road and 
Butterwick, and increase the size of the island to accommodate cyclists and pedestrians 

 

 
6.  Improve conditions for other road users. 
 
6.1 To improve conditions for other users the scheme will: 
 

 Install pedestrian countdown signals at the crossings of King Street, Beadon Road, 
Shepherd’s Bush Road, Queen Caroline Street, Hammersmith Road and Butterwick. 

 

 Widen the footway on King Street where possible to provide more space for pedestrians in 
this busy area 

 

 Raise the carriageway to footway level on King Street opposite Lyric Square to make 
crossing more convenient for pedestrians and encourage slower motor vehicle speeds. 

 

 De-clutter footways by rationalising locations of street furniture along the route. 
 

 Increase cycle parking around the gyratory and rationalise it. 
 

 Relocate one loading bay and two disabled parking bays on Black’s Road to provide space 
for additional taxi rank spaces  

 

7.  Removal of pedestrian crossing 
 
7.1 To ensure cyclists have adequate space to wait for a green signal on the island at the south 

of Shepherd’s Bush Road, we would need to remove the existing pedestrian crossing that 
connects this island to the south side of Hammersmith Broadway. 

 
7.2 Although the crossing is less well-used than others in the area, its removal would mean 

some pedestrians would have to find alternative routes. Those walking between the south 
side of Hammersmith Broadway and the west side of Shepherd’s Bush Road would need to 
cross Queen Caroline Street and Beadon Road. Those walking between the south side of 
Hammersmith Broadway and the east side of Shepherd’s Bush Road would have a choice 
between crossing Queen Caroline Street, Beadon Road and Shepherd’s Bush Road or 
crossing Hammersmith Broadway at its junction with Butterwick. 

 

8. Bus lane on Beadon Road 
 
8.1 Beadon Road is narrow and carries a high volume of buses and general traffic. To reduce 

delays currently experienced by buses approaching the gyratory, TfL would provide a new 
bus lane on Beadon Road between Glenthorne Road and Hammersmith Broadway. 

 

9.  Scheme benefits for cyclists. 

9.1 The table below details the high-level outcomes of the Better Junction project and the 

associated benefits for cyclists. 

Outcome Benefits 

A road layout which provides 
separation between cyclists and 
general traffic on desirable cycling 
routes. 

Reduction in cyclist collisions. Increased 
cycling volumes with associated health, 
public transport and trade benefits. 

Page 39



A road layout which provides 
pedestrian facilities which can 
accommodate pedestrian demand 
and desire lines.  

Reduction in pedestrian collisions. 
Reduction in pedestrian severance 
across the gyratory. 

Any reduction in traffic capacity 
mitigated as far as possible. 

Noise and air pollution minimised. Cycling 
not impacted by stationary traffic on and 
around the gyratory. 

Any increase in bus journey time or 
decrease in journey time reliability 
mitigated as far as possible. 

Public transport accessibility to and from 
Hammersmith Town maintained. 

A highway design which fits with 
emerging requirements of the 
Hammersmith Gyratory area 

Minimised re-work and disruption when 
the future developments are progressed 

  

 

9.2 Design layout for the scheme is attached in Appendix 1. 

 

10. CONSULTATION 

10.1  Council officers have been working with TfL on proposed changes to the Gyratory for the 
last 18 months. 

10.2  Initial feasibility designs were created by the borough in 2008 and in association with 
HFCyclists and passed to TfL, which formed the initial outline designs for the project.  

10.3  These outline proposals were discussed with various groups such as the Hammersmith BID 
and indirectly with the Hammersmith and Fulham cycle action group, HFCyclists. TfL have 
also conducted a number of pre-consultation discussions with stakeholders such as the 
London Cycling Campaign, and the TfL modes; buses, LV etc. 

10.4 TfL have started the public consultation on the 6rd of February 2016 until the 14th March 
2016. https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/hammersmith-gyratory 

10.5 The Consultation Process will consist of a number of different stages, all of which are 
designed to allow the maximum interaction with the public and businesses. Public 
consultation is one stage of the delivery programme.  

10.6 TfL have emailed details of the consultation to a comprehensive stakeholder listing in 
Hammersmith and Fulham, and all consultees on their consultee list for London. 

10.7 H&F Council have mailed out to all of its main stakeholders details of the consultation. 

10.8 TfL are conducting  a series of public consultation ‘open door’ sessions at the St Pauls 
church in Hammersmith which is adjacent to the Gyratory.  

10.9 TfL have mailed out a consultation leaflet to residents located near the gyratory.  

10.10 There are a number of stages that the scheme has gone through and will go through before 
any permanent changes are made;  

 Design – Initial designs go through a series of review stages to ensure that the 
proposed changes are feasible and meet the needs of the project and the residents.  

 Engagement – While plans are being designed Council staff will contact residents, 
businesses and commuters who will be impacted by the changes to find out how they 
perceive the area as it currently stand.  

Page 40

https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/roads/hammersmith-gyratory


 Public consultation – The plans will be drawn up and sent to residents and businesses 
in the area to offer the opportunity to ask questions and raise any concerns they may 
have.  

 Statutory consultation – The final proposed designs incorporating any agreed changes 
based on the previous stages will then be made available to the borough for residents to 
provide final feedback.  

 Implementation – The proposed and agreed plans will then be implemented over an 
agreed timescale. 

 
10.11  The results from the full public consultation will be gathered and evaluated by TfL, and a 

results document produced that will be issued to the Council. This document will be used to 
prepare the Cabinet decision report for implementation of the scheme, subject to public 
support. 

11.  OFFICER COMMENTS 
 
11.1 Officers across the following council departments have been consulted for their comments.  

 Highways engineering 

 Planning department 

 Urban Design 

 Smarter choices 

 Development Control 
 

11.2 These comments have been collated as follows: 
Cyclists: 

 Cycle lanes appear to be  narrow at the junction with King Street 

 Where will additional cycle parking be located at the junction of King Street and the 
Broadway 

 How will the pedestrians be kept out of the cycle lanes at crossing points 

 Can the cycle track along King Street be bi-directional? 

 Can cyclists have a ‘green wave’ across all the junctions? 

 Could the crossing proposed to be removed be incorporated in a re-design of the 
stop lines for the traffic lights? 

 Can the cycle track that crosses Shepherd’s Bush Road be re-aligned to be less of a 
dog-leg and more direct for cyclists 

 
11.3 Bus users. 

 The Bus lane along Beadon Road is hampered by the zebra crossing. Could this be 
changed to a Toucan? 

 
11.4 Pedestrians: 

 The pedestrian crossing from Shepherd’s Bush road to Hammersmith Broadway 
could be retained if the pedestrian crossing was incorporated in the signals. 

 Can the pedestrian crossing of Shepherd’s Bush road northbound lane be realigned 
alongside the cycle track. 

 
11.5 Motorised vehicles; 

 Outside Hammersmith Broadway station, how are delivery/collection vehicles 
accommodated? 

 
11.6 Other comments: 

 Can more ‘greening’ be incorporated into the islands and the scheme incorporate 
more sustainable urban features? 

 

Page 41



 

 Appendix 1.  Overall scheme design. 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Cycling Strategy 2015 Richard Duffill ex 1749 Transport and 
Highways 

 
 

 

Page 42



TAXIS

TAXIS

TAXIS

LOADING ONLY

A219
(N)

A315 A315

(E)

A219
(S)A4(W)

A315(E)
A4(E)

A219(S)

LO
AD

IN
G 

BA
Y

BU
S

ST
OP

BU
S

ST
OP

BU
S

ST
OP

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

BUS
STOP

BUS
LANE

BUS
LANE

BUS
LANE

Bus stop

Pedestrian crossing area
Cycle lane (green colour shown for illustrative purposes only)
Bus Lane (red colour shown for illustrative purposes only)

New footway or traffic island

New road markings

New tree (subject to further investigations)

Existing kerbline removed

Key:

Existing tree

DRAFT

Section A-A

Hammersmith
Gyratory

HAMMERSMITH ROAD
HAMMERSMITH

BROADWAY

BEADON ROAD

BRIDGE 
AVE

BLACK’S

ROAD

KING STREET

KING STREET

SHEPHERD'S 
BUSH ROAD

HAMMERSMITH
GROVE

BUTTERWICK

QUEEN 
CAROLINE 

STREET

Island enlarged

New mandatroy 
westbound cycle lane

New mandatory 
cycle lane

Taxi rank retained

New eastbound contaflow
stepped cycle track

Loading bay relocated to
south side of Blacks’s Road

Pedestrian crossing
removed

Footway widenedRaised carriageway

Separate cycle signals

Separate cycle signals

Loading bay relocated
(Existing length retained)

New bus lane

Relocated 
zebra crossing

New bus lane

Loading bay retained

Signalised cycle access from
King Street to Bridge Avenue New eastbound contraflow 

stepped cycle track

W

Q

U

New eastbound segregated
cycle track

New two-way segregated
cycle track

New two-way
segregated cycle track

New eastbound stepped
cycle track

Hammersmith
bus station

Hammersmith

Hammersmith

New taxi rank

Separate cycle signals

Stepped cycle track Mandatory cycle track

A

A

See inset below
P

age 43



 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT & RESIDENTS 
SERVICES POLICY & ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
2nd March 2016 

Cycle Quietway between Kensington and East  Acton. 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services 

 

Open Report 

Classification:  For Scrutiny Review & Comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 

Accountable Director; Mahmood Siddiqi, Director for Transport and Highways 
 

Report Author: Richard Duffill. Borough Cycling Officer. Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 1749 
E-mail: 
Richard.Duffill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
1.      EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report outlines the proposed development of a cycle Quietway from the boundary of 

Kensington and Chelsea to East Acton, linking residential areas with main destinations 
such as Wormwood Scrubs, The Linford Christie stadium, and Hammersmith Hospital. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1.  That the Committee review the report and comment on its contents. 
 
3.         INTRODUCTION  

3.1 The new Cycling Strategy 2015 was adopted by Cabinet on 12 October 2015. We are 
determined to ensure our roads are as safe as they can be for cyclists, and that our 
infrastructure is suitable for our predicted growth in population, and our aspiration of getting 
8% of our residents travelling by cycle each day. 

3.2 To help reach this target in Hammersmith & Fulham, the new cycle network will consist of 
two levels of cycle route, Cycle Superhighways which have segregated cycle tracks, and 
Quietway routes which utilise existing roads and streets which have lighter traffic flows. 

 
3.3 The project has a number of key objectives that support the Hammersmith and Fulham 

Cycling Strategy 2015 and the Mayor of London’s vision. These are: 

 Increase the number of cyclists using alternative cycle routes 

 Improve cyclist safety and the perception of safety in the borough. 

 Improve pedestrian safety. 

 Improvement in the quality of the Public realm 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Richard.Duffill@lbhf.gov.uk


3.4 We are aiming to make the majority of cycle routes in the borough “Quietways”, routes that 
overcome barriers to cycling, and therefore targeting cyclists who want to use quieter, low-
traffic routes. 

3.5 These routes are not just for current cyclists, they are for residents who want to get out and 
about, but don’t want to be faced with lots of traffic, and who don’t want to cycle on the main 
roads or in Bus lanes. 

 
3.6  On such Quietways, there will be no need to separate cycles from traffic as part of the 

scheme we will aim to develop continuous routes with better wayfinding signage, new 
junction improvements to make it easier to cross main roads when necessary, and any 
other barriers such as chicanes , will be removed. 

  

3.7 Designs for the scheme are attached in Appendix 1 and 2. 

 
4.  BACKGROUND 
 
4.1 Transport for London (TfL) has identified that Route 213 from Kensington and Chelsea to 

East Acton is a Quietway route that could be developed in the first phase of Quietway 
routes in our borough. 

 
4.2 TfL have allocated funding for the development of this Quietway route in 2016-2017. 
 
4.3  The purpose of this route is to provide an alternative and upgraded link from the Kensington 

boundary to the East Acton tube station, taking in major locations such as Hammersmith 
Hospital, Wormwood Scrubs and the Linford Christie sports stadium. 

 
4.4 The Quietway routes starts in the north of the Borough at the boundary with Kensington and 

Chelsea in Mitre Way, it then enters the southern edge of  Wormwood scrubs and heads 
towards East Acton tube station before finishing at the A40 Westway cycle crossover.  

 
4.5  The full  Quietway route starts at St Mark's Road in Kensington and Chelsea and finishes at 

East Acton. 

4.6 We have taken the opportunity to route the Quietway along the southern edge of 
Wormwood scrubs including a new shared access track into the scrubs. This new section of 
track will not only create and improve the access into the scrubs , but will create a short link 
to the existing track alongside the athletics stadium, and of course to Hammersmith 
Hospital. 

4.7 Outline designs have been developed by Sustrans and H&F Council along the route. 
 
 

5.  Proposed layout changes 
 
5.1 The proposed route would utilise existing cycle paths and upgrade them to Quietway 

standard, with this project also making changes to road junctions that would normally  form 
a barrier to cyclists.  

 
5.2 New cycle junction layout at the connection of Mitre Way and Dalgarno Gardens. This will 

make it much safer and easier to join the Quietway. 
 

Page 45



5.3 Proposed bi-directional cycle track along Mitre way linking Scrubs lane with the new 
junction at Dalgarno Gardens. This will encourage cyclists and family groups to access the 
scrubs by this link. 

 
5.4 New cycle and pedestrian crossing of Scrubs lane. The junction will feature a new toucan 

crossing for pedestrians and cyclists which will enable easy access onto the Quietway.  
 
5.5 Proposed new entrance into Wormwood Scrubs and then a new link including a shared 

cycle and pedestrian path along the southern edge of the scrubs to reach the existing cycle 
path near the Linford Christie stadium. This will become a new gateway into the Scrubs and 
follows a current desire line established by pedestrians. 

 
5.6 Update of the existing cycle path alongside Wormwood Scrubs prison to a wider and better 

surfaced path. The current path is shared use but has a very narrow cycle lane marked out. 
 
5.7 New cycle path link at the end of the path onto Braybrook Street outside Old Oak Primary 

school. This will overcome the issues of a blind corner adjacent to a high wall, and the new 
track follows a pedestrian and cycle desire line. 

 
5.8 Changed crossing and minor junction changes at Fitzneal street and Du Cane road. The 

new crossing will make the crossing of Du cane road safer and easier for cyclists. 
 
5.9 New one-way system southbound along Fitzneal Street with a contra flow cycle lane. This 

proposal aims to eliminate the current problem of ‘rat-running’ along Fitzneal street.  

 
5.10 Physical improvements to the public highway and programme work designed to reduce 

congestion, manage traffic and promote road safety fall under the Council’s statutory duties 
under a variety of acts including the Traffic Management Act 2004. 

 
5.11 Where changes to the highway are proposed, these are in line with Section 122 of the Road 

Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“The 1984 Act”); securing the expeditious, convenient and safe 
movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of suitable 
and adequate parking facilities. 

 

6. CONSULTATION 

6.1  Council officers have been working with Sustrans and Tfl on the proposed route. 

6.2 H&F  have started the public consultation on the 10rd of February 2016 until the 14th March 
2016. 

6.3 The Consultation Process will consist of a number of different stages, all of which are 
designed to allow the maximum interaction with the public and businesses. Public 
consultation is one stage of the delivery programme. 

6.4 H&F have begun the consultation on the main Council cycling  web site:  

6.5 H&F have emailed details of the consultation to a comprehensive stakeholder listing in 
Hammersmith and Fulham. 

6.6 There are a number of stages that the scheme has gone through and will go through before 
any permanent changes are made;  

 Design – Initial designs go through a series of review stages to ensure that the 
proposed changes are feasible and meet the needs of the project and the residents.  

Page 46



 Engagement – While plans are being designed Council staff will contact residents, 
businesses and commuters who will be impacted by the changes to find out how they 
perceive the area as it currently stand.  

 Public consultation – The plans will be drawn up and sent to residents and businesses 
in the area to offer the opportunity to ask questions and raise any concerns they may 
have.  

 Statutory consultation – The final proposed designs incorporating any agreed changes 
based on the previous stages will then be made available to the borough for residents to 
provide final feedback.  

 Implementation – The proposed and agreed plans will then be implemented over an 
agreed timescale. 

 
6.7 The results from the full public consultation will be gathered and evaluated by H&F, and a 

results document produced that will be presented to the Cabinet member. 

 

 

Appendix 1.   Proposed plan of the Cycle Quietway between East Acton and Kensington 
and Chelsea 

 

Appendix 2.   Detailed designs of Scrubs lane, Wormwood scrubs Du Cane road. 

 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Cycling Strategy 2015 Richard Duffill ex 1749 Transport and 
Highways 

 
 

 

Page 47



70 Cowcross Street  London EC1M 6EJ

020 7017 2350    www.sustrans.org.uk

Drawing No:

Scale at A3:Drawn:

Project:

Title:

Date:Checked:

Status:

DescriptionRev Drawn Date

Revision:

sustrans
JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Quietway St. Mark's Road to East Acton

Route Alignment

CV KI 09/02/2016 NTS

CONSULTATION

- -

Key:

Quietway Route Alignment

Central London Grid

N

Borough Boundary

P
age 48

AutoCAD SHX Text
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
SCRUBS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
MITRE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
DALGARNO GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
BRACEWELL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
NORTH POLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
LATIMER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
OXFORD GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
DARFIELD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
SILCHESTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
BRAMLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
ST.	MARK'S ROADMARK'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
LANCASTER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
ERCONWALD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
FITZNEAL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
DU CANE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
HILARY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
BRAYBROOK STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
LB HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
RB KENSINGTON AND CHELSEA



Deterrent

paving

New two way cycle

lane segregated  by

planters

B

R

E

W

S

T

E

R

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

B

R

A

C

E

W

E

L

L

 

R

O

A

D

D

A

L

G

A

R

N

O

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

M

I

T

R

E

 

W

A

Y

S

C

R

U

B

S

 

L

A

N

E

N

O

R

T

H

 

P

O

L

E

 

R

O

A

D

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

E

P

LC

LC

EP

EP

E

P

EP

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

B

Remove current parking

on Mitre Way between junctions with

Scrubs Lane and Bracewell Road

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

Remove bollards

2 No. new bollards

1 No. new bollard

Extended footway to

prevent cars parking

in front of cycle way

Removal of narrow cycle

track and repave to match

surrounding

Deterrent

paving

M

I

T

R

E

 

W

A

Y

Extended shared use

pavement

Proposed path to new

entrance to Wormwood Scrubs

Proposed signal island

Tighten up radii and widths

for lower speeds

New two way cycle

lane segregated  by

planters

Removal of existing

island

Proposed new 4m wide

toucan crossing

Slip lane for

cyclists leaving the

carriageway

Removal of

existing zebra

crossing

Slip lane for cyclists

leaving the carriageway

Access to Wormwood

Scrubs moved south

adjacent to new crossing

Proposed 4m wide

toucan crossing

Proposed 4m wide

toucan crossing

New right turning pocket

LC

Dropped kerb for northbound

cyclists joining the carriageway

70 Cowcross Street  London EC1M 6EJ

020 7017 2350    www.sustrans.org.uk

Drawing No:

Scale at A3:Drawn:

Project:

Title:

Date:Checked:

Status:

DescriptionRev Drawn Date

Revision:

sustrans
JOIN THE MOVEMENT

LOCALITY  PLAN

N

Key:

Walking/Cycling Space

Uncontrolled Crossing Tactile Paving

Proposed Dropped Kerb

Quietway Route Alignment

Proposed Kerb

Sign & Post

Yellow Line Marking

Lamp Column

Existing Kerb

LC

Carriageway/Path Resurfacing

Footway

Light Segregation Unit - Armadillo or similar

Controlled Crossing Tactile Paving

Notes:

1. Two way track with light segregation proposed

on Mitre Way.

2. Geometry of junction Mitre Way with Scrubs

Lane altered to facilitate signalised crossings

on two arms.

Quietway St. Mark's Road to East Acton

Mitre Way

to Scrubs Lane

RR KI 03/11/2015 1:500

CONSULTATION

QSMR-C-07-01-01 A

A
Cycle lane and junction update

CV 30/11/15

Deterrent paving

0m 10m 20m10m

SCALE 1:500 at A3

0m 10m 20m10m

P
age 49

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
SCRUBS LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
MITRE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
SCRUBS LANE



Deterrent

paving

New two way cycle

lane segregated  by

planters

B

R

E

W

S

T

E

R

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

B

R

A

C

E

W

E

L

L

 

R

O

A

D

D

A

L

G

A

R

N

O

 

G

A

R

D

E

N

S

M

I

T

R

E

 

W

A

Y

S

C

R

U

B

S

 

L

A

N

E

LC

LC

LC

Existing path

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

LC

New 3.5m wide
shared path

70 Cowcross Street  London EC1M 6EJ

020 7017 2350    www.sustrans.org.uk

Drawing No:

Scale at A3:Drawn:

Project:

Title:

Date:Checked:

Status:

DescriptionRev Drawn Date

Revision:

sustrans
JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Quietway St. Mark's Road to East Acton

Wormwood Scrubs

CV KI 03/11/2015 1:1000

CONSULTATION

QSMR-C-10-01-01 -

LOCALITY  PLAN

N

Walking/Cycling Space

Key:

Carriageway/Path Resurfacing

Quietway Route Alignment

Lamp Column

LC

Notes:

1. It is proposed to build a new 3.5 metre wide

path through Wormwood Scrubs Park following

existing desire lines and benches.

2. Path offset by 5 meters from existing foliage.

A Lighting column update CV 30/11/15

0m

SCALE 1:1000 at A3

50m

P
age 50



E

R

C

O

N

W

A

L

D

 

R

O

A

D

F

i

t

z

n

e

a

l

 

S

t

r

e

e

t

D

U

 C

A
N

E
 R

O

A
D

H

I
L
A

R

Y
 
R

O

A
D

LC

EP

E

P

EP

D

U

 
C

A

N

E

 
R

O

A

D

F

I

T

Z

N

E

A

L

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

H

I
L
A

R

Y
 
R

O

A
D

Two way cycle lane

New zebra crossing located towards centre

 of a tightened raised table.

Extended shared footway

Dropped kerb

Removal of 2 No.

parking spaces

Fitzneal Street to be one way

for general traffic with

contra-flow cycle lane

Existing zebra crossing to be removed

L
C

E

R

C

O

N

W

A

L

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

B

B

Contra-flow cycle lane sign

Removal of 1 No. parking space

Removal of 1 No.

parking space

Proposed island

F

I

T

Z

N

E

A

L

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

70 Cowcross Street  London EC1M 6EJ

020 7017 2350    www.sustrans.org.uk

Drawing No:

Scale at A3:Drawn:

Project:

Title:

Date:Checked:

Status:

DescriptionRev Drawn Date

Revision:

sustrans
JOIN THE MOVEMENT

Quietway St. Mark's Road to East Acton

Fitzneal Street

to Hilary Road

via Du Cane Road

CV KI 03/11/2015 1:500

CONSULTATION

QSMR-C-14-01-01 -

LOCALITY  PLAN

Raised Table

Walking/Cycling Space

Key:

Existing / Proposed Tree

Proposed Dropped Kerb

Parking Bay Modification

Quietway Route Alignment

Proposed Kerb

Sign & Post

Yellow Line Marking

Lamp Column

Existing Kerb

LC

Notes:

1. A raised junction is proposed to slow vehicle

speeds where cyclists and pedestrians cross.

2. The width of the junction is narrowed to reduce

crossing distance. The extra width is used as a

shared area enabling a safe crossing for

cyclists and pedestrians.

3. A cycle contraflow on Fitzneal Street is

proposed, which ties in with the crossing on Du

Cane Road.

N

N

-

0m 10m 20m10m

SCALE 1:500 at A3

0m 10m 20m10m

0m 10m 20m10m

SCALE 1:500 at A3

0m 10m 20m10m

Footway

Shared-Use Tactile Paving

P
age 51


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Services for Violence Against Women and Girls
	6 Sustainable Drainage Systems Update
	7 Hammersmith Gyratory Consultation
	Gyratory Appendix 1

	8 Cycle Quietway between Kensington and East Acton Consultation
	Quietway Appendix 1
	Quietway Appendix 2a
	Quietway Appendix 2b
	Quietway Appendix 2c




